
 

Page 1 

Annual Meeting of 
The Nebraska Capitol Commission 

And 
The Nebraska Capitol Environs Commission 

 
Meeting Minutes 

November 17, 20015 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Governor Ricketts called to order the annual joint meeting of the Nebraska Capitol 
Commission and the Nebraska Capitol Environs Commission at 10:10 a.m. in 
Legislative Hearing Room 1507, Nebraska State Capitol, Lincoln, Nebraska. 
 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

Nebraska Capitol Commission Members  
Present:     Absent: 

  Governor Ricketts    Stan Meradith   
Speaker Hadley 
Chief Justice Heavican 
Scott Killinger 
Michael Smith 
Bryce Neidig      
Jim Cudaback      

  
Nebraska Capitol Environs Commission Members  

Present:     Absent: 
  Jeff Searcy     Tom Laging 
  Gene Crump 

Christie Dionisopoulos 
John Kay   

  Karen Nalow 
  Jon Weinberg 
    
 Ex-Officio Members in Attendance:  
  Office of the Capitol Commission Administrator – Bob Ripley 
  City Planning Department Representative – Ed Zimmer 
 
 



 

Page 2 

3. Review/Approval  November 18, 2014, Combined Meeting Minutes 
 
Governor Ricketts asked for a motion to approve the minutes.  Mr. Searcy MOVED to 
approve the November 18, 2014, Annual Joint Meeting Minutes.  Mr. Crump SECOND 
the motion.   
 
 Governor Ricketts called for a voice vote on the motion.  The motion PASSED with a 
unanimous vote of the members present with Governor Ricketts abstaining from 
voting due to his not being present at the November 18, 2014, meeting.   (12 Aye, 2 
Absent, 1 Abstain). 
 
The November 18, 2014, Joint Meeting Minutes were approved. 
 

4. New Business 
 

A. Capitol Environs Commission Annual Report – Ed Zimmer 
 
Mr. Zimmer handed out to the Commission members the Nebraska Capitol Environs 
Commission 2014 Draft Annual Report.  Mr. Zimmer advised the Commission 
members that at this time the report is a draft at this time because the Environs 
Commission could possibly meet two (2) more times this year. 
 
Mr. Zimmer gave a brief summary of the Commission’s accomplishments and the 
major projects reviewed by the Commission in 2014.   Mr. Zimmer stated the 
Centennial Mall project has been the big project for the Commission for the past 
several years and he expects it to be the star project for the report next year with the 
completion of the project schedule. 
 
Mr. Searcy thanked Mr. Zimmer and staff for the work they do for the Environs 
Commission.  
 
Mr. Zimmer stated the Commission is bound by ordinance to meet four (4) times a 
year but typically meets eight (8) or more times to complete the business for the year.   
Mr. Zimmer said he wanted to acknowledge that Cecil Steward was one of the original 
members has retired from the Commission and Gene Crump is the newest member. 
 
Mr. Cudaback asked how if the Centennial Mall project was progressing as planned.  
Mr. Zimmer said the Parks Department has been pleased with the contractor and 
identified Environs Commissioner Karen Nalow as being directly involved with design 
and oversight of the project.   Ms. Nalow agreed they have been very pleased with the 
contractor.  Mr. Searcy added there will be a dedication in 2016 and a possibly a grand 
celebration in 2017 for the Sesquicentennial.  



 

Page 3 

 
(A copy of the report can be obtained from the County-City Planning Office and, at 
the time of the writing of these minutes, the draft copy is on file at the Office of the 
Capitol Commission.) 
 

B. Capitol Commission Annual Report – Robert Ripley 
 
Mr. Ripley introduced Roxanne Smith as the Tour Guide Supervisor who is the editor, 
publisher and reporter of the 2015 Annual Report.  Mr. Ripley thanked Roxanne for all 
her hard work on the annual report.  Ms.  Smith hand out the Office of the Capitol 
Commission 2015 Annual report to the Commission members.  Mr. Crump dually noted 
that Roxanne was on television this week bestowing the virtues of the Capitol and the 
tour office. 
 
Mr. Ripley apprised the Commissioners that Stan Meradith of the Capitol Commission 
was out of the country on a work assignment.  At the request of Mr. Meradith, Mr. 
Ripley extended Mr. Meradith’s apologies for not being present at today’s meetings. 
 
Mr. Ripley stated the annual report is a summary of the work the Office has achieved 
in the past year.   Mr. Ripley gave an overview of each of the sections within the 
report. 
 
Mr. Ripley asked if the Commission had any questions for him.  Speaker Hadley asked 
that during the extensive HVAC project if care would be taken to not damage those 
areas that have already been renovated.  Mr. Ripley replied that renovated offices are 
recorded and in these offices only the walls and areas where the mechanical 
equipment is located will be renovated during the HVAC project, thus taking care not 
to damage or redo the previous renovation work. 
 
Mr. Searcy thanked Mr. Ripley for attending the Capitol Environs Commissions 
meeting, along with Matt Hansen.  Mr. Searcy asked if there was a policy for when the 
observation deck doors are to be open.   Mr. Ripley replied there is a policy that is 
mainly determined weather conditions which are monitored by Capitol Security.  
High winds can often be a factor for keeping the doors locked to ensure the safety of 
visitors. 
 
Mr. Crump asked if there is any plans to open the fifth (5th) floor walk around.  Mr. 
Ripley stated he would love to renovated and open this area, however, the current 
priority is to renovate office spaces.  There is also a safety concern because it is an 
overlook to the second (2nd) floor rotunda below and would require security 
personnel to be present.   Mr. Crump further stated that the Capitol is such a beautiful 
building and should be accessible to the public and encouraged Mr. Ripley to consider 



 

Page 4 

the opening of this floor.  Mr. Ripley said he appreciated Mr. Crump’s comments and 
would do what he could to move this up on the list of priorities. 
 
Mr. Kittinger thanked Mr. Ripley for his willingness in arranging special tours for UNL 
groups.  Mr. Cudaback asked if the Library was still open to the public.   Mr. Ripley 
acknowledged it was open to the public as well as some areas are being utilized as 
office space for Supreme Court Staff. 
 
Mr. Searcy asked for an update on the Courtyard Fountains project.   Mr. Ripley stated 
the construction bids were taken, which came in within the budget, and was currently 
waiting to get the contract with selected contractor.   Independent bids were taken for 
the bronze casting of the fountain bowls and the selected fabricator is Atlas Bronze 
Casting located in Salt Lake City, Utah.  Mr. Ripley said he anticipated that work 
should be underway shortly. 
 
There being no further questions from the Commission Mr. Ripley said he had a small 
presentation on a project that began in Governor Orr’s administration.   Mr. Ripley 
stated this has been a long restoration project that required a lot of research and 
craftsmanship by staff.   
 
Mr. Ripley explained the chair being displayed was an exotic chair that is one of six of 
its kind.   Mr. Ripley gave a little background about the chair and the restoration 
project and timeline. 
 
Mr. Ripley introduced that staff that make up this restoration team:   
 
   Brett Daughtery – Supervisor who oversees Carpentry and Maintenance shops 
   Mike Marshall - cabinet maker 
   Steve Janssen - wood finisher  
   Lana Gabel - newest member to the restoration team 
   Dawn Hickmon - currently oversees the furniture program 
   Ron Dulas – Previously oversaw the furniture program as well as performed much of 
                                the restoration.  Ron is currently retired but is finishing the project. 
 
Mr. Ripley asked Ron Dulas to give some brief highlights about the restoration of the 
chair on display.  Mr. Dulas reviewed some of the highlights and points of interest 
during the restoration of the chair.  
  
Mr. Crump asked from where is the chairs original designation in the Capitol.  Mr. 
Dulas replied in the Governor’s hearing room and Mr. Ripley offered it is a chair that is 
placed around the crescent hearing table.   
 



 

Page 5 

Mr. Ripley also recognized Tom Kaspar as the Capitol Original Furniture Program 
Manager and who is also an important part of the team that provided a great amount 
of input and research toward this restoration project.  
 
Mr. Smith asked if this was a Goodhue design.  Mr. Dulas replied yes.  Mr. Smith asked if 
it was known where the chairs were originally made.  Mr. Kaspar replied in 
Cambridge Massachusetts and the companies name was Shaw. 
 
Mr. Dulas said he wanted to acknowledge that although a lot of the detail restoration 
work was done by the shop staff Mr. Ripley and Mr. Kaspar provided direction and 
input and are an integral part of the restoration project. 
 

C. Next Joint Commission Meeting 
 
Mr. Ripley announced for the purpose of Commissioner’s 2016 calendars that next 
year’s annual joint meeting has been scheduled for November 8, 2016. 
 

D. Other Business from Either Commission 
 
There was no other business from either Commission. 
  

5. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business, Governor Ricketts asked for a motion to adjourn the 
meeting.   Chief Justice Heavican MOVED to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Crump 
SECOND the motion. 
 
Governor Ricketts called for voice vote to adjourn the meeting.  The motion PASSED 
with a unanimous vote of the members present (13 Ayes, 2 Absent). 
 
Governor Ricketts adjourned the meeting at 10:55 a.m. 
 
 
 
Minutes prepared 11/24/2015 by: 
 
Tammy Honnor, Facilities Construction Coordinator 
Office of the Capitol Commission 
 
Minutes approved   __________________ 


